NOTE: The following are questions from the 19 October 2011 NSA Industry Day.
Answers provided may be changed as more information is available. It is the
contractor’s responsibility to review the final Request for Proposal (RFP) for the
applicable requirements, evaluation criteria, and terms and conditions.

The briefing charts, NSA requirements list, milestones and draft Safety
Statement of Work have been posted to the public website.

Non-Standard Ammunition (NSA)
Industry Day
19 Oct 2011

Q1. Do you intend to specify any specific suppliers for any items (restricted sources).

R1. No, offerors will be responsible for sourcing ammunition from suppliers that comply with the
requirements included in the solicitation for NSA and any resultant contract as well as all applicable
local, country, and international laws and regulations for the accountability and security of arms,
ammunition and explosives.

Q2. What will be the turnaround time for submittal of proposals?
R2. Proposals will be due 30 to 45 days after issuance of the RFP.
Q3. Will there be a draft RFP?

R3. At this time, the Government does not believe a draft RFP is needed. Information on the
procurement was provided during Industry Day; and information used to formulate the RFP will be
posted to this website.

Q4. Will the U.S. Government be selecting two or three awardees?
R4. This will be based upon evaluation of proposals during source selection.
Q5. Will one of the awards be to small business? Are you considering small business set aside?

R5. No, the acquisition will be solicited on a Full and Open competitive basis. Large businesses will be
required to submit a small business subcontracting plan.

Q6. Can you talk about what you are looking for in a System Integrator Approach?

R6. FMS requirements for NSA are usually not known in advance and are bought utilizing various
contractual instruments. Due to these unknown requirements, the U.S. Army must utilize a flexible
acquisition approach in order to be in a more proactive position to efficiently meet our foreign allies’



war fighting and training requirements. This will be accomplished by utilizing a system integrator
approach in which contractors are responsible for the sourcing and delivery of various types of NSA to
our foreign allies throughout the world.

Q7. What is the difference between the Overarching Integrated Product Team (OIPT) and the Technical
Integrated Product Team?

R7. OIPT is the overarching meeting (telecon) to discuss all contractual requirements ie., program,
schedule and performance. The Technical IPT is to discuss the technical data, lot acceptance planning
and any other issues regarding system performance.

Q8. Minimum Guaranteed Quantities (MGQ) and range quantities — how do they go together? Need
clarification on how pricing will work?

R8. The MGQ is awarded under the first delivery order and binds the IDIQ contract. The total firm fixed
price for the MGQ hardware and transportation will be evaluated for award purposes. The Government
will provide price evaluation spreadsheets in the RFP for evaluation of the ceiling price proposed for all
111 requirements included. Historically the price evaluation spreadsheets required offerors to submit
prices for defined quantity ranges for each item (ie., price ranges 500-50,000; 50,001-250,000 and;
250,001-500,000). The Government requested industry feedback on the necessity for range pricing as
experienced through its suppliers (ie., do the foreign suppliers typically quote quantity breaks).

Q9. Any idea on type of ammo and quantity for the MGQ?

R9. Not at this time. We anticipate the MGQs will be for various types of NSA for delivery to
Afghanistan and Iraq. Historically, the Government has procured more small caliber than medium
caliber and more medium caliber than other types of ammunition.

Q10. Will there be a maximum value on any of the delivery orders?

R10. No. The maximum value will be established at the contract level. Delivery orders will be
competed IAW the Fair Opportunities to compete provisions in FAR Part 16.505 as FMS cases are
implemented and funding is in place. FAR 52.216-19, Order Limitations, will be included in the RFP.

Q11. What is the turnaround time for receipt of proposals for delivery orders?

R11. The Government anticipates a two week turnaround for receipt of proposals for subsequent
delivery orders.

Q12. Can a contractor combine shipments? If a shipment for a flight is already scheduled from a
previous delivery order, can the contractor combine flights and come in with $0 for the transportation in
its delivery order proposal?



R12. There is nothing in contract that restricts combining shipments. However, if a delay in delivery of a
previous order combined with a subsequent order occurs, any revised schedule will require contractor
offer of consideration and the delay will be evaluated during past performance evaluation of any
subsequent delivery orders. The contractor will be responsible for ensuring compatibility of the item
hazard classifications for any planned combined shipments.

Q13. How will the Delivery Order Phase be executed?
R13. Details will be outlined in the RFP and each request for proposal for subsequent delivery orders.

As requirements are identified by our foreign allies, a letter identifying the NSA, quantity, weapon
system, customer, delivery requirements, final destination and any unique country requirements will be
sent to the successful IDIQ awardees. Offerors will be required to submit a proposal identifying the firm
fixed unit prices (not to exceed the ceiling price in its IDIQ proposal) of the hardware and the cost of the
transportation to final destination for the defined list of NSA. Risks currently being assumed by the
contractors by pricing unknowns into the unit price should be significantly reduced resulting in better
prices.

Through the “fair opportunity” process of competing delivery orders among all awardees, the
Government will select the best value proposal considering price and schedule; and, as required, past
performance and capacity.

Q14. How soon after award will delivery be required; our company is concerned with delivery schedule
timelines due to the fact that it takes 50 days to get an export license from the country.

R14. Delivery is normally based on a number of days after receipt of the End User Certificate and the
requiring country’s requirements and schedule and will be identified in the RPF or subsequent delivery
orders.

Q15. Do they have option not to bid on delivery orders if pricing cannot be obtained or meet ceiling
price?

R15. The goal is to foster competition and it is the Government’s intention to award to offerors on an all
or none basis. If an awardee chooses to not submit proposals for subsequent delivery orders, the past
performance evaluation may be negatively affected.

Q16. By the delivery order phase, do you mean years 4 and 5 of the contract?

R16. No, the delivery order phase commences after award of the IDIQ contract and Delivery Order
0001. Delivery orders for years 1-5 will be competed among awardees as each requirement is identified
and funding is received.

Q17. Can you share NSA budget?

R17. There is no budget or POM data for NSA.



Q18. Will Performance Based Payments be allowed?

R19. The criterion of the regulations for contract financing must apply, therefore, a delivery order type
contract may NOT qualify based on the dollar value and period of performance of each order.
Performance Based Payments may be considered if the contractor can provide acceptable events and
measurable criterion. See FAR Part 32, Contract Financing and 32.10, Performance-Based Payments

Q20. Would the RFP include accelerated payments for Small Businesses?
R20. No, fast pay applies to simplified acquisitions.

Q21. Will any insurance requirements be dictated or will the government be the self insurance? Do you
have to ensure so many km from the airport to the bunkers for ammo?

R21. No, risk of loss is driven by terms of the FOB transportation clauses.

Q22. Is the Item Information and Certification Statements (IICS) signed for at Kabul International Airport
or at 22 bunkers and then submitted through Army Contracting Command —Rock Island? How long is
the process? Once it is signed off, can they go ahead and complete requirements in Wide Area Work
Flow (WAWE)?

R22. Section E of the RFP will include the details for inspection and acceptance. All required signatures
on the IICS must be obtained prior to submittal into WAWF. For Afghanistan deliveries, the IICS is signed
off at 22 Bunkers. This process is typically completed within a week.

Q23. What is the Inspection records and reports format?

R23. Each company creates its own inspection report format. The RFP will include a template with the
required information for the Weekly Status Report, the Flight Status Report and the Item Information
and Certification Statement (IICS).

Q24. Will pre-inspections be required by contractors in new effort? If so, would an inspection by an in-
country representative be okay?

R24. Yes, the prime contractor is responsible for conducting pre-inspection prior to DCMA inspection to
ensure the items meet all contractual requirements. Reference FAR 52.246-2, Inspection of Supplies —
Fixed Price.

Q25. QARs in the past have asked to visit factories. Are prime contractors able to deny requests?

R25. Yes, based on the draft DCMA Safety SOW, prime contractors may deny any DCMA inspection
representative a tour of any other ammunition and explosive area unrelated to source inspection.

However, DCMA safety experts conducting initial site safety plan reviews should be granted access in
order to conduct their validation of the contractor’s supplied ingress/egress routes and inspection site
for final product inspection.



Q26. How will Past Performance be determined? Can past performance be experience as a Principal of
company under another organization? Factories supplying NSA — can their performance be factored in?
How will past performance play into the evaluation of delivery orders?

R26. Section L of the RFP will include instructions to offerors on submittal of all proposals; and Section
M will include the evaluation criteria. During the delivery order execution phase, an overall
Performance Risk Report Record will be established for each contractor and maintained throughout the
life of the contract. Price and contract performance will always be considered during delivery order
evaluation; and technical and other factors MAY also be considered.

Q27. Requirement to bid all items creates challenges to small or specialized companies. Will the
Government consider breaking out the requirements into families? What if they cannot provide pricing
for one item? Is that a dis-qualifier?

R27. This will be an all or none procurement and firm fixed ceiling prices will be required for all items in
the RFP.

Q28. Is the Transportation piece for all three years?

R28. No. The transportation cost for the MGQs will be required in your proposal submittal. All other
transportation costs will be submitted during the delivery order execution phase.

As requirements have been identified, a request for proposal identifying the ammunition, quantity,
weapons system, customer, final destination, any unique country requirements will be sent to each of
the successful offerors for submittal of a proposal. That pool of contractors will be required to submit a
firm fixed unit price for the ammunition/ammunition related item and a firm fixed unit price for the
transportation of each contract line item.

Q29. Will items be mostly shipped to Afghanistan and Irag?

R29. Historically, the majority of NSA has been delivered to Afghanistan and Iraq, however, the future
foreign defense and security environment is unknown.

Q30. Is there a provision to change transportation mode used in determining ceiling price?
R30. There is no need for this as transportation costs will only be proposed on a delivery order basis.
Q31. Can you give us a list of the airports/transportation destinations?

R31. The delivery mode and site details will be in the RFP for the MGQs and in individual requests for
proposal for the subsequent delivery orders.



Q32. Will Economic Price Adjustments (EPA) and exchange rates be considered?

R32. No. To mitigate contractor risk, the Government has removed the transportation cost from the
hardware ceiling prices in order to mitigate this issue. Based on the supplier base selected, the
Government assumes offeror may use several indexes for the ceiling prices for years 1-3. Further,no
ceiling prices will be required for years 4 and 5. Competition of NSA requirements for years 4 and 5 will
be limited to the pool of IDIQ awardees.

In order to include EPA provisions, the Government is required to set aside an amount of funding. Due
to the way the funding is provided and the time of validity, the Government is unable to set aside
funding.

Q33. Why not stipulate indices for out years? There are 250 that can be used. Examples are the
European Labor rate index (EU), London Metal Exchange and Retail Price Index.

R33. The Government is asking for industry feedback on indices for Government planning purposes.

Q34. Are U.S. Flag Vessels required for ocean transportation? Will the Government implement waivers
for instances where a contractor may have issues with cost?

R34. The use of U.S. Flag Vessels will only be determinable once the specific requirements are identified
for the Minimum Guaranteed Quantity (MGQ) and each subsequent delivery order. However, the use of
U.S Flag Vessels can be reasonably anticipated for at least some of the requirements to be ordered. In
the event use of U.S. Flag Vessels is a transportation requirement, any waivers based on non-availability
or excessive cost will be processed at that time. Do not price your proposals assuming you will get a
waiver.

Q35. For Iraq, will surface shipment be mandatory? Destination at bunkers or port? Will it include
trucking to Ammunition Storage Point?

R35. Yes. Currently destination to Iraq is to bunkers as specified in the contractual document. FOB to
specified final destination will be required for Iraq deliveries.

Q36. Can contractors get CAC cards particularly in Kabul? Want. Do prime contractors need Field
Service Representatives? Can you consider this?

R36. No, the RFP does not require contractors to have personnel on the ground in Afghanistan;
therefore, billeting and Common Access Cards will not be authorized under this RFP.

Q37. Do DOT requirements apply?

R37. No, since all deliveries are to be made FOB Destination to foreign allies. Packaging containers for
hazardous materials, ammunition and explosives shall meet or exceed the requirements found in part 6
of the "United Nations Recommendations on the Transport of Dangerous Goods Model Regulations"
and in a manner acceptable to the competent authority of the nation of origin and in accordance with



the regulations of all applicable carriers. Packaging and marking for hazardous material shall comply
with the requirements for the mode of transport and the applicable performance packaging contained
in the following documents: United Nations Recommendations on the Transport of Dangerous Goods
Model Regulations, International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO) Technical Instructions for the Safe
Transport of Dangerous Goods by Air, International Maritime Organization (IMO) International
Maritime Dangerous Goods Code (IMDG)

Q38. Sequential Rough Handling (SRH) — Are we looking for open temperature, LAT or validation?

R38. Yes. We are looking for evidence that testing was conducted and that periodic assessment or
validation of this requirement is conducted to insure base line performance is maintained. It is not
expected that every Lot Acceptance Test (LAT) will include an SRH test. It is expected that this testing is
conducted periodically in accordance with supplier manufacturing process verification tests and after
changes are made to ammunition or packaging design. It is the responsibility of the Prime and Supplier
to ensure that the method used and frequency is documented in the approved technical data.

Q39. Is SRH and operational temperature testing on a Lot to Lot basis or on a delivery basis?

R39. We are looking for evidence that testing was conducted and that periodic assessment or validation
of this requirement is conducted to insure base line performance is maintained. Verification of
operational temperature functioning is the responsibility of the supplier to demonstrate. It is not
expected that every LAT will include a temperature test. It is expected that this testing is conducted
periodically in accordance with supplier manufacturing process verification tests and after changes are
made to the ammunition design. It is the responsibility of the Prime and Supplier to ensure that the
method used and frequency is documented in the approved technical data.

Q40. Are you looking at amounts for lethal radius? What about arena testing? Are you looking at the
number of frags/size of frags?

R40. Yes. We are looking for evidence that testing was conducted and that periodic assessment or
validation of this requirement is conducted to insure base line performance is maintained. It is the
supplier’s responsibility to demonstrate that the lethal radius of their ammunition is as described in
their technical documentation included in the technical data submission. It is expected that this testing
is conducted periodically in accordance with supplier manufacturing process verification requirements
and after changes are made to the ammunition design. It is the responsibility of the Prime and Supplier
to ensure that the method used and frequency is documented in the approved technical data.

Q41. Why do we not have/use the Russian technical requirements?

R41. Russian technical data documentation and performance requirements are not available to the
Government. Requirements to supply NSA to foreign allies are determined by the weapons systems
they have in place and are using in their respective missions. These weapon systems may or may not
conform completely to Russian technical requirements.

Q42. Will any technical data be required during the proposal phase?



R42. Technical Approach will be an evaluation factor. Detailed criteria are yet to be determined by the
Government.

Q43. Did you take into account different suppliers producing the product when developing
specifications?

R43. Yes the family specifications are based on our history of reviewing and validating various producer
technical data.

Q44. Are there concerns with sharing technical data outside the U.S. for the NSA program (i.e. ITARS)?

R44. Each prime is responsible to insure they comply with the International Traffic and Arms
Regulations(ITAR) and if applicable apply for a Technical Assistance Agreement (TAA). Technical data
submitted by the Prime/Supplier is maintained in an access controlled data base that is only available to
PD-NSA and the Prime/Supplier from which it was obtained.

There are some provisions/exemptions to the licensing requirements in the ITAR for FMS. The State
Department, Office of Defense Trade Controls is responsible for licensing and enforcement and offerors
should coordinate their questions with ODTC.

Q45. Does Picatinny support a team based evolution of a TDP?

R45. No. The Picatinny NSA Team reviews what the Prime/Supplier provides. There are ITAR limits on
technology transfer. The Government does not tell them what is acceptable; we expect the prime to be
the configuration manager. We will audit what is provided.

Q46. Any special requirements regarding testing?
R46. The General Specification and Family Specifications include testing requirements.

Q47. Is the TDP submittal and approval a function of days before government source inspection? Will
this be considered? (i.e. 90 days before LAT)?

R47. The TDP is required to be provided to the Government prior to LAT. It has to be approved before
LAT/Gov’t source Inspection — we proposed 15 days after award because current method is not working;
we will consider an alternate approach that would require submission 90-120 days prior to LAT.

Q48. If contractors have an approved TDP today, will they have to get another approved TDP under the
new contract?

R48. If the Prime/Supplier is going to use a current, approved TDP it is required that validation of the
TDP be conducted. l.e. is it still current and have there been any component changes made to that TDP.
If yes, the prime/supplier will need to demonstrate that these changes have not impacted performance
through submission of test data and updates to the TDP .We are considering requiring some or all TDPs
as it only relates to the MGQ; each potential offer would in that case have to submit a TDP even if they



had one previously approved. If the TDP were still current it should be a fairly quick and easy process
under the circumstances listed above.

Q49. What is the process to validate it? Is it a draft or final technical data within 15 days?

R49. Validation will not occur at the time of initial award nor with the MGQ. We are considering TDP
submission 90-120 days prior to LAT instead of 15 days after award at which time the technical IPT will
work with each successful contractor to validate a TDP prior to LAT and Government source inspection.

Q50. Does TIP ID/Headstamp apply to old inventory?

R50. Yes. The family specifications do not provide color specific TIP ID; they require the supplier to
provide those color or marking details as part of the TDP submission process. Tip ID and Headstamps
are used in maintaining logistic control of the item when it is fielded. It provides what the item is , when
manufactured and by whom. It enables the field to provide data on performance issues and PD-NSA to
validate technical documentation/configuration supplied in case of malfunctions.

Q51. We anticipate having difficulty with the site safety plan and the ingress/egress and distance
requirements and are not sure we can meet these inspection requirements.

R51. Industry has been requested to provide comments on the draft Safety SOW for Government
consideration in finalizing the Safety SOW.

Q52. Is the site plan going to be in accordance with a CDRL or Statement Of Work (SOW)?

R52. The site plan will be detailed in the Safety SOW. It has not yet been determined if a CDRL or a
report format will be utilized for submittal. The required submittal will be included in the RFP.

Q53. What if site plan is rejected?

R53. The Government would consider that on a case by case basis. An alternate site for the
Government source inspection may be required.

Q54. We think it will be difficult during government source inspection to not have DoD material next to
non-DoD material? Could we have mixed DoD and non-DoD in a building/bunker for final product
inspection?

R54. Yes but it has to be in the approved site plan. Request additional information from industry if this
is an issue.

Q55. Any possible thought of pre-purchasing for what the requirements might be and store them on a
military base?

R55. No. This will be on an order-to-order basis once an FMS case is implemented.



Q56. Are we supposed to impose ammunition and explosive site safety quantity distance requirements?

R56. That is the goal, but the host nations equivalent standards identified in a safety site plan may be
utilized.
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